
1 of 2 
 

EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
November 9, 2017 

 
Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts___Longanecker ___Crooks  ___ Brown ___ Crist  ___ Conus 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Agenda Approval 
5. Approve Minutes from October 26, 2017 
6. Accept Easements from Larry and Donna Pearce for Dollar General Project 
7. Approve Year-End Longevity Bonus for Employees 
8. Approve Funding Recommendations for 2018 Human Service Fund 
 
Regular Agenda 
9. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

10. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
Business Requiring Action 
11. CONSIDER FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2017 STREET PROGRAM (OVERLAY) 

AUTHORIZE FINAL PAYMENT TO LITTLE JOE’S ASPHALT 
 

Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
12. CONSIDER FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF E NELSON STREET QUIET ZONE (CARS) 

PROJECT AND AUTHORIZE FINAL PAYMENT TO MILES EXCAVATING INC. 
 

Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
13. CONSIDER FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE WEST 8TH STREET SIDEWALK 

IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZE FINAL PAYMENT TO PHILLIPS 
CONSTRUCTION KC, LLC  
 

 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 



2 of 2 
 

14. CONSIDER RENEWAL OF RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND 
DISPOSAL SERVICES FOR ONE CALENDAR YEAR TO GARDNER DISPOSAL AND 
AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT 

 
 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
15. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1067 AMENDING CHAPTER III, ARTICLES 2, 3, 4 

AND 7 OF THE EDGERTON MUNICIPAL CODE TO CORRECTLY REFLECT THE STATE 
REQUIREMENT OF A BIENNIAL OCCUPATIONAL TAX FOR THE SALE OF LIQUOR 
BY RETAIL ESTABLISHMENTS, DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS, AND PRIVATE 
CLUBS 

 
 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
16. CONSIDER CHARTER ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3 OF CHARTER 

ORDINANCE NO. 23 OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS TO ACCURATELY 
REFLECT THE EXPIRATION OF CITY COUNCILMEMBER TERMS 

 
 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
17. CONSIDER A DATA SHARING AGREEMENT WITH JOHNSON COUNTY WATER 

DISTRICT #7 FOR THE PURPOSES OF GATHERING WATER USAGE OF WATER 
DISTRICT CUSTOMERS IN EDGERTON TO CALCULATE SEWER FEES 

 
 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
18. Report by the City Administrator 

o Cancellation of November City Council meeting 
 

19. Report by the Mayor 
 

20. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 
• November 14th 7:00 PM – Planning Commission 
• November 15th Noon – Senior Lunch 
• November 23rd and 24th City Offices Closed for Thanksgiving 
• November 24th City Council meeting - TBD 
 

21. CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 
(b) (6) FOR PRELIMINARY DISCUSSION RELATED TO ACQUISITION OF REAL 
PROPERTY TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

 
22. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ______ 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 26, 2017 

Page 1 
City of Edgerton, Kansas 

Minutes of City Council Regular Session 
October 26, 2017 

 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, 

Kansas on October 26, 2017.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Roberts presiding. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

Darius Crist  present 
Jody Brown  present 
Ron Conus   present 
Clay Longanecker  present 
 
Cindy Crooks  absent 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Beth Linn 
    Assistant City Administrator Scott Peterson 
    City Attorney Lee Hendricks 
    Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
    Finance Director Karen Kindle 
    Parks Maintenance Bob McVey 

       
2.  WELCOME  
         
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA  
 
4.  Agenda Approval was considered.  
5. Minutes from October 12, 2017 City Council Meeting were considered. 
6. Application for Final Plat 2017-08, Rail-Served First Plat and Accept any dedications was
 considered. 
 
 Motion by Crist, seconded by Longanecker, to approve the consent agenda. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 Vince Werkowitch, 15445 S. Moonlight Road, was present to speak about the ColdPoint Logistics 
 Project.  Mr. Werkowitch also talked about other cold storage facilities in the area. He talked 
 about anhydrous ammonia and the safety effects that need to be taken when using anhydrous 
 ammonia.  
 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 26, 2017 

Page 2 
8. DECLARATION 
 
 None 
 
 BUSINESS REQUIRING ACTION 
 
 ORDINANCE NO 1066 COMMERICAL TRUCK TRAFFIC 
9. ORDINANCE NO 1066 PROHIBITING COMMERCIAL TRUCK TRAFFIC IN THE MARTIN CREEK PARK 

PARKING LOT, AND ENTRANCE THERETO, IN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS AND PROVIDING 
CERTAIN PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF WAS CONSIDERED.  

 
 At the October 12, 2017 City Council Meeting, staff recommended a two-inch overlay at the Martin 

Creek Park driveway and parking lot as part of an underrun of asphalt leftover from the Asphalt 
Overlay Project.  City Council approved this allocation and the work has been completed.  Ordinance 
No. 1066 has been prepared to prohibit commercial trucks from parking or driving on the driveway 
or parking lot.  There are exemptions for emergency vehicles, city and utility vehicles, and vehicles 
that are working on behalf of the City or a City event.  Drivers found to be in violation of the 
proposed ordinance will be subject to a fine as outlined in the adopted Standard Traffic Ordinance. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Crist, to approve Ordinance No. 1066. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 10-26-17A INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS, COLBY SERIES 17, LLC PROJECT 
10. RESOLUTION NO. 10-26-17A DETERMINING THE INTENT OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, TO 
 ISSUE ITS INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF $1,000,000 TO PAY THE  
 COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING AND EQUIPPING A RETAIL BUILDING FOR THE BENEFIT OF 
 COLBY SERIES 17, LLC WAS CONSIDERED. 
 
 The City received an application for the issuance of industrial revenue bonds from Colby Series 
 17, LLC for the construction and equipping of an approximately 7,500 square foot retail building to 
 be located at 106 West 3rd street in Edgerton, Kansas. The developer is requesting that the bonds be 
 issued so that the project is eligible for a sales tax exemption certificate to be used for construction 
 materials.  The project is not eligible for property tax abatement.  No ad valorem property tax 
 abatement will be granted for this project.   
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Resolution No. 10-26-17A. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 10-26-17B INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS, COLD POINT LOGISTICS REAL ESTATE 
11. RESOLUTION NO. 10-26-17B CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE LEASE, FIRST 

SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (COLDPOINT LOGISTICS REAL 
ESTATE, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2016 WAS CONSIDERED. 

 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 26, 2017 

Page 3 
 The City issued industrial revenue bonds and granted property tax abatement for the ColdPoint 

Logistics Real Estate, LLC project.  The City received an Order from the Board of Tax Appeals 
exempting the land and the building for a term of ten years from 2017 thru 2026. Cold Point is now 
constructing an expansion project on ground that is adjacent to the original project.  The ground will 
have the same term of abatement as the land and building for the original project, which is 2017-
2026. However the expansion project that consists solely of the building expansion (no land) will 
have an abatement term of 2018-2027. 

 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to approve Resolution No. 10-26-17B. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
12. REPORT BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 No second meeting in November. 
  
 2017 FLOOD PURCHASES 

Item numbers 20 (dumpster for flood clean up) and 21 (Assessment of EWWLS generator after 
flood) listed on the handout for purchases made under emergency authority need to be ratified, 
were considered. 

  
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to approve the flood purchases. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0 
 
13.  REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
  

Save the dates:  
*        November 2nd 6:30-8:30pm Town Hall Meeting at Edgerton Elementary                 
*        November 4th 2:00 pm Dollar General Ground Breaking         
        November 13th 8:00 am.  UPS – Ribbon Cutting 

 Please attend if possible. 
 
14. FUTURE MEETING/ EVENT REMINDERS: 
 
 October 29th 4:00 pm – Halloween Party 
 November 8th 6:30 to 8:30 pm – Final Downtown Edgerton Public Open House, City Hall 
 November 9th 7:00 pm – City Council Meeting 
 November 14th 7:00 pm – Planning Commission 
 November 15th Noon – Senior Lunch 
 November 23rd and 24th City Offices Closed for Thanksgiving 
 November 23rd City Council Meeting – TBD 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
October 26, 2017 

Page 4 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to recess into executive session for five minutes for 

purposes of discussing acquisition of real estate, possible purchase of land, to include Mayor and 
Council, City Administrator and City Attorney. 

 
 Motion was approved, 4-0 
 
 Meeting recessed at 7:25 pm. 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Crist, to reconvene the regular meeting with no action 
 taken. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 7:32 pm. with no action taken. 
  
14.  ADJOURN MOTION:  1st Longanecker                 2nd Brown                        Vote       4-0 
  
 The meeting adjourned at 7:35 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Janeice L. Rawles 
City Clerk 
 
 
Approved by the Governing Body on 



















































AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Approval of Year-End Longevity Bonus for Employees 
 
Department:  Administration 
 
Background/Description of Item: Historically, the City of Edgerton has thanked its long-term employees 
for their years of service with a longevity bonus at year-end. The bonus has been awarded based on $1.50 
per month of employment with the City. Using this methodology, annual bonuses would total $1,777.00 
and would range from $50 to $498.00. Employees who have not worked for the City for at least thirty-three 
months and part-time employees would receive a minimum $50 bonus. The City of Edgerton Personnel 
Rules and Regulations state “Annual longevity pay may be given at the discretion of the Governing Body.”  
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  Personnel Rules and Regulations  
 
Recommendation:  Approve Year-End Longevity Bonus for Employees 
 
Funding Sources: General - General Government – Salaries; General – Streets – Salaries; Water – 
Distribution – Salaries; Sewer – Treatment Plant - Salaries 
 
Prepared by:  Karen Kindle, Finance Director   
Date: October 30, 2017 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Funding Recommendations for 2018 Human Service Fund 
 
Department:  Administration 
 
Background/Description of Item: During the annual budget process for 2018, Edgerton City Council 
approved an allocation of $1800 to United Community Services for the Human Service Fund. The Human 
Service Fund agreement gives participating jurisdictions the authority and responsibility for determining 
allocations from this fund. The Edgerton governing body is requested to approve the funding 
recommendations no later than January 5, 2018.  
 
The Human Service Fund offers local governments a cost-efficient, accountable mechanism to support an 
array of services that help residents of every city and township who are facing difficult circumstances. 
Funding is awarded to local nonprofit agencies which provide vital programs that meet the needs of 
Johnson County residents who live with income at or near the federal poverty level. Priority is given to 
programs that address child care, job training, emergency aid and shelter, child/adult abuse, child welfare, 
and health care. (See appendix B for all funding priorities.) Agencies recommended for grants demonstrate 
positive outcomes and are working collaboratively with others in the community. 
 
Last year programs receiving Human Service Fund grants served approximately 57,570 Johnson County 
residents in-need. But, these programs benefit more than just the individual and their family; the entire 
community, including local government, benefits. Without a strong human service infrastructure to address 
issues such as unemployment, lack of child care, homelessness, child abuse and neglect, domestic 
violence, and untreated medical conditions, our community will experience higher crime rates and lower 
tax revenue, a decline in the standard of living, and weakened economic health. 
 
Enclosed is the 2018 Human Service Fund Applicant History and Recommendations for review. As a 
participating jurisdiction, Edgerton City Council has been asked to review and approval the funding 
recommendations.  
 
Enclosure:  2018 Human Service Fund Applicant History and Recommendations 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Funding Recommendations for 2017 Human Service Fund 
 
Funding Sources: N/A 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator   
Date: November 9, 2017 























 
AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 

 
Agenda Item:  Consider the Final Acceptance of the 2017 Street Program (Overlay) 
 
Department:  Public Works 
 
Background/Description of Item: The 2017 Annual Street Maintenance Program was developed to 
include a Base Bid, Bid Alternate #1 and Bid Alternate #2 to provide City Council flexibility in awarding 
the project based on the bids received. A description of the streets included in the project is below. Also 
enclosed is a map illustrating these streets.  
• Base Bid (orange): E McCarty Street, W Hulett Street, E Hulett Street, E Martin Street, E McDonald 

Street 
• Bid Alt. #1 (maroon): E Rankin Street, E Meriwood Street, E 3rd Street and E 4th Street 
• Bid Alt. #2 (green): E 5th Street and E 6th Street. 
 
City staff will be working to complete the necessary preparation work for the project. This work should 
be wrapped up prior to the start of project, or just out ahead of the contractor if necessary.  
 
BID PROCESS 
On May 25th, 2017 Council granted concurrence to bid the 2017 Street Maintenance Program (Overlay). 
The project manual and accompanying documents were posted on Drexel Technologies Plan Room on 
June 22, 2017, and a public bid opening for the 2017 Street Program was held on Monday July 17, 2017. 
The City received six bids. A copy of the project bid tabulations has been prepared by City Engineer and 
enclosed with this packet.  
 
BUDGET 
The approved 2017 Capital Improvement program includes a total of $150,000 for 2017 Annual Street 
Maintenance Project as shown in the enclosed project sheet. That includes $70,341 in Special Highway 
funds and $79,659 in LPKC Maintenance Fee funds.  
 
BID ALTERNATES 
On July 27th City Council Approved the 2017 Overlay Program, including Bid Alternate #1 and #2, with 
Little Joes Asphalt, Inc. with a total project cost of $245,557.22. Per the completion of the project the 
total cost of the Adjusted Contract is $ 216,142.30 
 
The project included two changes order. The change orders were due to the flooding of the Public Works 
Facility and the Total Loss of the necessary equipment need to finish the preparation work. Change 
Order #1 was the finishing of Prep Patching, Change Order #2 was raising of Manholes and Water 
Valves.  
 
Original Contract:   $245,557.22 
 
Adjusted Final Contract Price:  $216,142.30 
Change Order No. 1:     $39,999.18 
Change Order No. 2:       $4,000.00  
Actual Contract Price:   $260,141.48 



 
Enclosure:      Final Pay Estimates including Change Orders  
  Email from Public Works regarding completion 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  N/A 
 
Recommendation: Approve Final Acceptance of the 2017 Street Program (Overlay) and Authorize Final 
Payment to Little Joes Asphalt, Inc.  

 
Funding Source: Capital Improvement Fund, Special Highway and Flood 
 
Capital Improvement: $145,801.30 
Special Highway: $70,341.00 
Flood: $43,999.18 
 
Prepared by:  Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent 
Date: November 3rd, 2017 







From: Trey Whitaker
To: Beth Linn
Subject: 2017 Street Program (Asphalt Overlay) Acceptance
Date: Monday, October 30, 2017 1:07:24 PM

Beth,
 
To the best of my knowledge Little Joe’s Asphalt Inc. has completed all work on within the scope of
the 2017 Street Program (Asphalt Overlay Base Bid, Alt #1 and Alt. #2), this also included overlay of
Martin Creek Park Parking Lot improvements. The work was completed for the City of Edgerton
Kansas as of October 16th, 2017. This project can be accepted by the City of Edgerton at your
discretion.
 
Respectfully Submitted,
 
Trey Whitaker
Public Works Superintendent 
404 East Nelson • Edgerton, KS 66021
913.893.6231 (O) • 816.206.2358 (C)
www.edgertonks.org 

 

mailto:twhitaker@edgertonks.org
mailto:blinn@edgertonks.org
http://www.edgertonks.org/


AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Consider Final Acceptance of E Nelson Street Quiet Zone (CARS) Project and Authorize 
Final Payment to Miles Excavating Inc.  
 
Department:  Public Works 
  
Background/Description of Item: On May 11th, 2016, City Council Approved Resolution No. 05-12-
16C supporting the E Nelson Street Quiet Zone Project as part of the County Assistance Road System 
(CARS) program for 2017-2021 for construction in 2017. The project will reconstruct Nelson Street (28' 
wide x 315' long concrete roadway) with associated storm water improvements, sidewalk and other related 
improvements. The E Nelson Street Project was design by BG Consultants. Inspection will be performed 
by City of Edgerton staff.  
 
The CARS program provides funds to the cities of Johnson County to construct and maintain their major 
arterials. Each year the cities submit a 5-year road improvement plan to Johnson County. Using a scoring 
system, Johnson County selects projects and allocates funds. The County pays 50% of the project’s 
construction and construction inspection costs. Cities are responsible for design, right-of-way, and utility 
relocation costs.  
 
On August 17, 2017, the City of Edgerton held a public bid opening. A total of five (5) bids were received, 
opened and read aloud to the public. Miles Excavating, Inc. of Basehor, Kansas submitted the low bid at 
$178,761.21. Based upon review of the bids and prior direct experience with Miles for both staff and City 
Engineer, staff recommendation is Miles Excavating, Inc. is qualified to perform the scope of work included 
in this project. 
 
Funding for construction of the project is 50/50 split between the City of Edgerton and CARS program. 
Total construction was budgeted at $195,600, with 50% from City of Edgerton at $97,800. Based on the 
low bid submitted, cost of construction for City of Edgerton would be $89,380.61, a savings of 
approximately $8,419.  
 
Notice to Proceed was issued on September 21st, 2017, substantial completion was October 13th, 2017 and 
Final completion of the work was October 27th, 2017.  
 
This project included a single change order, that was for advanced warning signage and message boards 
(Notification of project kick off date). 
 
Original Contract:  $178,761.21 
Change Order No. 1:    +$2,760.00 [within authority of City Administrator] 
Actual Contract:   $181’581.46 
 
Enclosure: Miles Excavation Inc. Application for Payment No. 01 (Final) 
  Change Order No. 1 
  Email from Public Works regarding completion 
  
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  N/A 
 



Recommendation: Approve Final Acceptance of E Nelson St Quite Zone (CARS) Project and Authorize 
Final Payment to Miles Excavating Inc. 
 
Funding Source: Capital Improvement Fund 
 
Prepared by:  Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent    
Date: November 3rd, 2017 



Application for Payment No. 01 (FINAL)

THIS PERIOD TO DATE THIS PERIOD TO DATE

1 1.00 LS 2,985.79$         2,985.79$             1.00 1.00 2,985.79$               2,985.79$               100.0%

2 1.00 LS 13,811.10$      13,811.10$           1.00 1.00 13,811.10$             13,811.10$             100.0%

3 1.00 LS 5,202.34$         5,202.34$             1.00 1.00 5,202.34$               5,202.34$               100.0%

4 1.00 LS 4,068.24$         4,068.24$             1.00 1.00 4,068.24$               4,068.24$               100.0%

5 1.00 LS 5,750.41$         5,750.41$             1.00 1.00 5,750.41$               5,750.41$               100.0%

6 3.00 DAILY 995.26$            2,985.78$             6.00 6.00 5,971.56$               5,971.56$               200.0%

7 32.00 LF 6.91$                221.12$                0.00 0.00 -$                        -$                        0.0%

8 24.00 LF 3.87$                92.88$                  0.00 0.00 -$                        -$                        0.0%

9 450.00 LF 1.38$                621.00$                0.00 0.00 -$                        -$                        0.0%

10 1.00 EA 1,037.31$         1,037.31$             1.00 1.00 1,037.31$               1,037.31$               100.0%

11 1.00 EA 453.78$            453.78$                1.00 1.00 453.78$                  453.78$                  100.0%

12 1.00 LS 1,990.53$         1,990.53$             0.00 0.00 -$                        -$                        0.0%

13 1.00 LS 2,156.41$         2,156.41$             1.00 1.00 2,156.41$               2,156.41$               100.0%

14 175.00 CY 17.88$              3,129.00$             175.00 175.00 3,129.00$               3,129.00$               100.0%

15 1,136.00 SY 11.74$              13,336.64$           1,136.00 1,136.00 13,336.64$             13,336.64$             100.0%

16 69.00 CY 11.14$              768.66$                69.00 69.00 768.66$                  768.66$                  100.0%

17 920.00 SY 61.48$              56,561.60$           920.00 920.00 56,561.60$             56,561.60$             100.0%

18 85.00 SY 125.72$            10,686.20$           85.00 85.00 10,686.20$             10,686.20$             100.0%

19 1,132.00 SY 8.91$                10,086.12$           1,132.00 1,132.00 10,086.12$             10,086.12$             100.0%

20 615.00 LF 32.52$              19,999.80$           615.00 615.00 19,999.80$             19,999.80$             100.0%

21 16.00 SY 204.42$            3,270.72$             16.00 16.00 3,270.72$               3,270.72$               100.0%

22 14.00 SY 159.71$            2,235.94$             14.00 14.00 2,235.94$               2,235.94$               100.0%

23 19.00 SY 83.94$              1,594.86$             19.00 19.00 1,594.86$               1,594.86$               100.0%

24 144.00 SY 45.00$              6,480.00$             144.00 144.00 6,480.00$               6,480.00$               100.0%

25 30.00 SY 201.23$            6,036.90$             30.00 30.00 6,036.90$               6,036.90$               100.0%

26 22.00 LF 21.01$              462.22$                22.00 22.00 462.22$                  462.22$                  100.0%

27 2.00 EA 1,105.85$         2,211.70$             2.00 2.00 2,211.70$               2,211.70$               100.0%

28 14.00 SF 17.69$              247.66$                14.00 14.00 247.66$                  247.66$                  100.0%

29 32.00 LF 5.53$                176.96$                32.00 32.00 176.96$                  176.96$                  100.0%

30 3.00 EA 33.18$              99.54$                  3.00 3.00 99.54$                    99.54$                    100.0%

CO 2.00 WK 1,380.00$         2,760.00$             2.00 2.00 2,760.00$               2,760.00$               100.0%

181,521.21$         181,581.46$           181,581.46$           100.0%

Temporary Gravel Construction Entrance Pad

Unclassified Excavation

Pavement Removal

Compaction of Earthwork (Type B)

Changeable Message Sign

Flume Inlet (Concrete)

Slope Drain (Concrete)

Aggregate Ditch Lining (4")

Sidewalk Construction (4") (AE)

Sign (Flat Sheet) (High Performance)

Sign Post (1-3/4" PSST)

Sign Post Footing (1-3/4" PSST)

Sidewalk Ramp (AE)

PROJECT TOTALS

Clearing and Grubbing

Traffic Control

Railway Flagger

Sediment Trap

Biodegradable Log

Slope Barrier

Concrete Washout

Temporary Seeding

Permanent Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching

Concrete Pavement (8" Uniform) (AE) (NRDJ)

Concrete Pavement (8" Uniform) (AE)

Aggregate Base (AB-3) (6")

Intersection Grade (PTP) (White) (24")

Intersection Grade (PTP) (White) (RR Xing)

Curb and Gutter (Combined) (AE)

Removal of Existing Structures

WORK PERIOD: 18 September → 13 October 2017

LINE 
NUMBER

LINE ITEM BID QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE  CONTRACT VALUE 
QUANTITY EXTENDED VALUE PERCENT 

COMPLETE

Contractor Construction Staking

Mobilization

East Nelson Street at BNSF Railroad Crossing / Quiet Zone
City of Edgerton, Kansas

CARS Project No. 320001143

Miles Excavating Project No. 17019C

APPLICATION DATE: 27 October 2017

PAGE 1 OF 2



178,761.21$           (1)

2,760.00$               (2)

181,521.21$           (3 = 1 + 2)

181,581.46$           (4)

-$                        (5)

-$                        (6)

181,581.46$           (7 =  4  - 5 - 6)

100.0%

REQUESTED BY: MILES EXCAVATING

APPROVED BY: PROJECT INSPECTOR / ENGINEER - BG CONSULTANTS

APPROVED BY: OWNER - CITY OF EDGERTON, KS

ORIGINAL CONTRACT VALUE =

VALUE OF CHANGE ORDERS APPROVED TO DATE =

CURRENT CONTRACT VALUE =

TOTAL VALUE OF WORK COMPLETED TO DATE =

PERCENT RETAINED (0%) =

TOTAL OF PREVIOUS PAYMENTS =

AMOUNT DUE THIS ESTIMATE =

COMPLETION PERCENTAGE TO DATE =

PAGE 2 OF 2



E. Nelson St. at BNSF Railroad Crossing / Quiet Zone Construction
City of Edgerton, KS

CARS Project No. 320001143
BG Consultants Project No. 17‐1101L

Miles Excavating Project No. 17019C

Change Order Submittal

LINE NO. DESCRIPTION
UNIT OF 

MEASURE
UNIT PRICE QUANTITY

EXTENDED

PRICE

‐‐ Morgan Contractors ‐‐ Weekly Rental for CMS Board WK 1,380.00$        2.00 2,760.00$           

TOTAL = 2,760.00$           

21 September 2017

Description:  The City of Edgerton requested two changeable message sign (CMS) boards be set up to notify the traveling public of the 

upcoming closure of East Nelson Street.  Morgan Contractors submitted a price of $1,200.00 per week for rental of one CMS.  Trey Whitaker 

with the City of Edgerton approved the change order and Morgan Contractors will have them on site Friday, 22 September 2017.  Miles 

Excavating has added 15% for overhead and profit to Morgan Contractor's price.

Schedule Impact:  None.



Morgan Contractors "Pavement Markings, Signage, Traffic Control"

929 Locust Hill Circle
Belton, MO  64012
816.313.5721
estimating@morgancontractors.com
www.morgancontractors.com

ESTIMATE
ADDRESS

Miles Excavating
15063 State Avenue,
Basehor, KS  66007

SHIP TO

CHANGE ORDER #1
East Nelson Street Construction
BNSF RR
Edgerton, KS

ESTIMATE # 171409
DATE 09/21/2017

  

CATEGORY ESTIMATOR PROJECT NAME
RW John Smitka Change Order 1 - E Nelson St

ACTIVITY RATE QTY AMOUNT

Message Boards

Construction notification message board per week.

1,200.00 2 2,400.00

Need text confirmation for programming the message on the board.

Need addresses for delivery of the boards.

 

TOTAL $2,400.00

Accepted By Accepted Date



From: Trey Whitaker
To: Beth Linn
Subject: CARS Project
Date: Monday, October 30, 2017 1:01:10 PM

Beth,
 
To the best of my knowledge Miles Excavating Inc. has completed all work on the CARS 2017: E
Nelson St (BNSF Quite Zone) Improvements for the City of Edgerton Kansas as of October 27, 2017.
This project can be accepted by the City of Edgerton at your discretion.
 
Respectfully Submitted,
 
Trey Whitaker
Public Works Superintendent 
404 East Nelson • Edgerton, KS 66021
913.893.6231 (O) • 816.206.2358 (C)
www.edgertonks.org 

 

mailto:twhitaker@edgertonks.org
mailto:blinn@edgertonks.org
http://www.edgertonks.org/


AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Final Acceptance of the West 8th Street Sidewalk Improvements to Phillips 
Construction KC, LLC and Authorize Final Payment To Phillips Construction KC, LLC 
 
Department:  Public Works  
 
Background/Description of Item: In January of 2016 staff issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
from design engineers to design new sidewalk improvements on West 8th Street, from Heather Knoll Drive 
to Nelson Street. The design contract was awarded to Larkin Lamp Rynearson.  
 
On April 20, 2017, the City of Edgerton held a public bid opening for the West 8th Street Sidewalk 
Improvements project. The project will install new sidewalks along the east side of West 8th Street, from 
Heather Knoll Drive to Nelson Street. A total of nine (9) bids were received; those bids ranged from a low 
bid of $160,318.65 to a high bid of $228,229.76. The engineer’s estimate was $209,814, with eight of nine 
total bids coming under the engineer’s estimate. Phillips Construction KC, LLC.  
 
City Council awarded the project to Phillips Construction KC, LLC on April 27, 2017. Final completion of the 
work was October 20th, 2017.  
 
This project included 3 Change Orders. The change orders for this project were due to meeting cross slope 
at drive approaches a total of 10 drive approaches, and placement of Sod at the residential portions of the 
project, and decreased the fencing quantity at the north end of the project. All three change orders meet 
the City’s purchasing policy for approval by the City Administrator, and therefore have been approved.  
 
Original Contract:  $160,318.65 
Change Order No. 1:    $11,297.00 
Change Order No. 2:            $0.00 
Change Order No. 3:      $3,062.32 
Actual Contract:   $174,667.97 
 
Enclosure: Project Map 
  Change Order No. 1 - 3  
  Email from BG regarding completion 
 
Recommendation: Approve Final Acceptance of the W 8th Street Sidewalk Project and Authorize Final 
Payment to Phillips Construction KC, LLC 

 
Funding Source: General Fund 
 
Prepared by:  Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent  
Date: November 3rd, 2017 
  



 
 
 
 West 8th Street Sidewalk Improvements 







Change Order 2 Quantities

No. Item Unit

Contract 

Quantity Unit Cost

Constructed 

Quantity Change Order 2 Additional Cost

17 Fence (42") (Chain Link) L.F. 635 $12.00 198.44 -436.56 -$5,238.72

18 Seeding S.Y. 3450 $2.80 2130.0 -1320.00 -$3,696.00

New-22 Sodding S.Y. 0 $6.75 1323.66 1323.66 $8,934.72

Total Change Order 2 $0.00

Description of changes:

17

18

New-22 Added Sodding of residential - estimated quantity

PHILLIPS CONSTRUCTION KC LLC

Decreased quantity based on City agreement to have property owner replace 

fence

Decreased quantity based on sodding residential

Change Order 2 Detail

Washington and Spring Street Reconstruction

City of Edgerton, Kansas

July 11, 2017

Larkin Lamp Rynearson No. 0316026.01





From: Jon Carlson
To: Scott Peterson; Dan Miller
Cc: Beth Linn; Chris Phillips (cphillips5035@hotmail.com); Trey Whitaker; david.hamby@bgcons.com
Subject: 8th Street Sidewalk Improvement Final Completion
Date: Thursday, October 26, 2017 8:25:32 AM

To the best of my knowledge Phillips Construction has completed all work on the West 8th Street
Sidewalk Improvements for the City of Edgerton Kansas as of October 20, 2017. This project can be
accepted by the City of Edgerton at your discretion.
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Jon Carlson
Senior Construction Observer

1405 Wakarusa Drive | Lawrence, KS 66049 
T: 785.749.4474 | F: 785.749.7340 
C: 785.331.8289 (Personal) 
Web: www.bgcons.com | Map | Email

This message, including attachments, may contain confidential and legally privileged information intended solely for the intended recipient. If you are not the intended
recipient, please notify the sender and do not take any action based on the information and do not disclose, store or distribute the information to any third party. Nothing
in this email shall be construed as a legally binding contract or offer to contract unless expressly written. BG Consultants, Inc. accepts no liability for the information
contained in this email or for the consequences of any action taken unless the information is expressly confirmed as a representation of the company.

 

mailto:speterson@edgertonks.org
mailto:Dan.Miller@LRA-Inc.com
mailto:blinn@edgertonks.org
mailto:cphillips5035@hotmail.com
mailto:twhitaker@edgertonks.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user0245bcb4
http://www.bgcons.com/
http://www.bgcons.com/
http://maps.google.com/maps?q=1405+Wakarusa+Drive,+Lawrence,+KS+66049
mailto:jon.carlson@bgcons.com


AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Renewal of Residential Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Services for One 
Calendar Year to Gardner Disposal and Authorize the Mayor to Execute the Contract 
 
Department:  Administration 
 
Background/Description of Item: Beginning January 1, 2015, the City of Edgerton contracted with 
Gardner Disposal to provide residential solid waste collection and disposal services. The contract to provide 
residential services ends December 31, 2017. 

Residential trash service with Gardner Disposal currently includes one (1) 95-gallon container for 
refuse and one (1) 65-gallon container for recyclables. All refuse must fit inside the container provided or 
have a sticker purchased for additional bags. Recyclables are unlimited. The service provides curbside 
collection of residential yard waste including grass, plant clippings, leaves and limbs once per week. During 
most months, the limit is eight (8) yard waste items. During the months of March, April, August, 
September, October and November the limit is twelve (12) items. Finally, the service includes the pickup 
of one furniture item per dwelling per week at no additional charge. 

Currently, the rate for residential solid waste collection is $15.00 per dwelling. The City covers 50% 
of this cost out of the General Fund, so residents are responsible for a $7.50 monthly fee for trash service 
from Gardner Disposal. Per the renewal agreement, this fee would remain the same. There are no 
proposed changes to the renewal agreement from the current contract. Should City Council choose to 
approve the renewal agreement, service would continue uninterrupted for businesses and residents as it 
has with the current agreement. The proposed renewal would be in effect for one (1) calendar year, 
beginning January 1, 2018, and ending December 31, 2018. 

At time of preparation of the packet, City Attorney is finalizing the agreement renewal. A copy will 
be distributed to City Council at November 9, 2017 City Council meeting.  
 
Enclosure: Agreement with Gardner Disposal for Residential Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Services 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s): Chapter VIII Article 5 Solid Waste 
 
Recommendation: Approve Renewal of Residential Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Services from 
Gardner Disposal for One Calendar Year and Authorize the Mayor to Execute the Contract 
 
Funding Source:  General – General Government – Trash Contract; Sewer – Treatment Plant - Trash 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator  
Date: November 9, 2017 







































AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Ordinance No. 1067 Amending Chapter III, Articles 2, 3, 4 and 7 of the Edgerton 
Municipal Code to Correctly Reflect the State Requirement of a Biennial Occupational Tax for the Sale of 
Liquor By Retail Establishments, Drinking Establishments, and Private Clubs 
 
Department:  Administration 
 
Background/Description of Item In September of 2017 City Council approved an ordinance 
amendment that lowered the requirement for prospective liquor licenses to be separated a certain distance 
from a school, church, or place of worship. The previous requirement was set at 300 feet, and City Council 
approved the amendment lowering the setback requirement to 200 feet. This requirement matched the 
State of Kansas, which also requires a separation of 200 feet for any liquor license from a school, church, 
or place of worship.  
 
As an additional effort to match State requirements for liquor licensing, Staff is proposing a second 
amendment to Chapter III that will require a Biennial Occupational Tax of $500.00 on any person holding 
a license issued by the state director of alcoholic beverage for any retail sale, on-premise consumption, or 
other sale of liquor or alcoholic beverages in the City of Edgerton. Specifically, the ordinance proposes 
changes to Retail Establishments, Drinking Establishments, and Private Clubs that require a license from 
the State of Kansas.  
 
Payment of the Biennial Occupational Tax will be a one-time payment every two years. Staff recommends 
that all licenses be effective until December 31 of the second year of the license, effective from the date 
of issuance.  
 
If approved, the Biennial Occupational Tax of $500.00 on any person holding a license issued by the state 
director of alcoholic beverage for any retail sale, on-premise consumption, or other sale of liquor or 
alcoholic beverages in the City of Edgerton will be added to the Annual Fee Resolution anticipated to be 
considered at the December 14, 2017 City Council meeting.  
 
Draft Ordinance No. 1067 was prepared by City Attorney and has been enclosed with the packet.  
 
Enclosure:  Draft Ordinance No. 1067 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s): Chapter III, Articles 2, 3, 4 and 7 of the Edgerton Municipal Code  
 
Recommendation: Approve Ordinance No. 1067 Amending Chapter III, Articles 2, 3, 4 and 7 of the 
Edgerton Municipal Code to Correctly Reflect the State Requirement of a Biennial Occupational Tax for the 
Sale of Liquor By Retail Establishments, Drinking Establishments, and Private Clubs 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Prepared by: Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator 
Date: November 6, 2017 



ORDINANCE NO. 1067 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER III, ARTICLES 2, 3, 4 AND 7, 
SECTIONS 3-204, 3-302, 3-402 AND 3-701 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS TO CORRECTLY REFLECT THE STATE 
REQUIREMENT OF A BIENNIAL OCCUPATIONAL TAX FOR THE SALE OF 
LIQUOR BY RETAIL ESTABLISHMENTS, DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS AND 
PRIVATE CLUBS AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter III, Articles 3, 4 and 7, Sections 3-302, 3-402 and 3-701 of the City Code 
of the City of Edgerton currently include an annual occupational tax charged to retailers, drinking 
establishments and private clubs for the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter III, Article 2 of the City Code of the City of Edgerton currently does 

not reference the requirement of such an occupational tax in the “ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR” section 
of the City Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, State law now requires that this occupational tax on parties selling liquor be 

charged on a biennial basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton wishes to amend the City Code to accurately reflect this 

biennial occupational tax on the sale of alcoholic liquor by retailers, drinking establishments and 
private clubs. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS: 
 

SECTION 1. Section 3-204 of the City Code of the City of Edgerton, which is currently 
listed as “RESERVED”, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
3-204 OCCUPATIONAL TAX.  (a) There is hereby levied a biennial occupational tax 

of $500.00 on any person holding a license issued by the state director of 
alcoholic beverage control for the retail sale within the city of alcoholic liquors 
for consumption off the premises.  Such tax shall be paid by the retailer to the 
city clerk before business is begun under an original state license and shall be paid 
within five days after any renewal of a state license.   

 (b)  Upon presentation of a state license and payment to the city of the tax 
described above, the city clerk shall issue a city license for the period covered by 
the state license, if there are no conflicts with any zoning or alcoholic beverage 
ordinances of the city. 

 (c)  No tax paid shall be refunded for any reason. 
 (d)  Every licensee under this article shall cause the city alcoholic liquor retailer’s 

occupation tax license to be placed in plain view, next to or below the state license 
in a conspicuous location on the licensed premises.   



 
 SECTION 2. Section 3-302 of the City Code of the City of Edgerton is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 

3-302 OCCUPATIONAL TAX.  (a) There is hereby levied a biennial occupational tax 
of $500.00 on each drinking establishment located in the city which has a drinking 
establishment license issued by the state director of alcoholic beverage control.  
Such tax shall be paid by the establishment to the city clerk before business is 
begun under an original state license and shall be paid within five days after any 
renewal of a state license.   

 (b)  Upon presentation of a state license and payment to the city of the tax 
described above, the city clerk shall issue a city license for the period covered by 
the state license, if there are no conflicts with any zoning or alcoholic beverage 
ordinances of the city. 

 (c)  No tax paid shall be refunded for any reason. 
 (d)  Every licensee under this article shall cause the city drinking establishment 

occupation tax license to be placed in plain view, next to or below the state license 
in a conspicuous location on the licensed premises.   
(e)  The drinking establishment license issued by the city shall not be transferable 
or assignable.  Each license shall be valid only to the originally applying licensee 
in the premises for which the license was originally issued. 

 
 SECTION 3. Section 3-402 of the City Code of the City of Edgerton is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 

3-402 OCCUPATIONAL TAX.  (a) There is hereby levied a biennial occupational tax 
of $500.00 on each private club located in the city which has a private club license 
issued by the state director of alcoholic beverage control.  Such tax shall be paid 
by the private club to the city clerk before business is begun under an original 
state license and shall be paid within five days after any renewal of a state license. 
  

 (b)  Upon presentation of a state license and payment to the city of the tax 
described above, the city clerk shall issue a city license for the period covered by 
the state license, if there are no conflicts with any zoning or alcoholic beverage 
ordinances of the city. 

 (c)  No tax paid shall be refunded for any reason. 
 (d)  Every licensee under this article shall cause the city private club occupation 

tax license to be placed in plain view, next to or below the state license in a 
conspicuous location on the licensed premises.   
(e)  The private club license issued by the city shall not be transferable or 
assignable.  Each license shall be valid only to the originally applying licensee in 
the premises for which the license was originally issued. 

  
SECTION 4. Section 3-701 of the City Code of the City of Edgerton is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 



 
3-701 OCCUPATIONAL TAX.  (a) There is hereby levied a biennial occupational tax 

of $500.00 on any person holding a license issued by the state director of 
alcoholic beverage control for the retail sale within the city of alcoholic liquor, 
including beer containing more than 3.2 percent of alcohol by weight, for 
consumption off the premises and sales in original package only.  Such tax shall 
be paid by the retailer to the city clerk before business is begun under an original 
state license and shall be paid within five days after any renewal of a state license. 
  

 (b)  Upon presentation of a state license and payment to the city of the tax 
described above, the city clerk shall issue a city license for the period covered by 
the state license, if there are no conflicts with any zoning or alcoholic beverage 
ordinances of the city. 

 (c)  No tax paid shall be refunded for any reason. 
 (d)  Every licensee under this article shall cause the city alcoholic liquor retailer 

by the package occupation tax license to be placed in plain view, next to or below 
the state license in a conspicuous location on the licensed premises.   

 
SECTION 5.  Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or sections of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 6.  Effective Date.   This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from 
and after its passage, approval and publication once in the City's official paper. 
 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor on this 9th day of November, 2017. 
 
  
          
    _____________________________________ 

    DONALD ROBERTS, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
JANEICE RAWLES, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
LEE W. HENDRICKS, City Attorney 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Charter Ordinance 24, Amending Section 3 of Charter Ordinance No. 23 of the 
City of Edgerton, Kansas to Accurately Reflect the Expiration of City Councilmember Terms  
 
Department:  Administration 
 
Background/Description of Item: On May 9, 2017 the Edgerton City Council approved Charter 
Ordinance No. 23 pursuant to new requirements by the State of Kansas regarding expiration of 
councilmember terms in municipalities in the State of Kansas. Charter Ordinance No. 23 currently states 
that all councilmember terms expire on the Second Thursday in January of the year following the end of 
their term. This in in conflict with the requirements of Article 12 of the Kansas Constitution, which requires 
that all councilmember terms in municipalities in the State of Kansas expire on the Second Monday of 
January of the year following the end of their term. As such, new councilmembers are to be sworn in on 
the Second Monday in January of the year beginning their term. 
 
Due to this conflict, City Attorney is recommending that Charter Ordinance No. 23 of the City of Edgerton 
be amended to reflect the state requirement that all councilmember terms expire on the Second Monday 
of January of the year following the expiration of said term. The date of expiration of previous terms, and 
swearing in of new terms, for two (2) open Councilmember seats and the Mayor’s seat this election year 
will be Monday, January 8, 2018, as opposed to the previously established Thursday, January 11, 2018 
that would have fallen on a scheduled City Council meeting as adopted by ordinance. 
 
In preparing the new Charter Ordinance, staff discussed the requirement for swearing in new council 
members on the second Monday with the League of Kansas Municipalities (LKM). The League indicated 
that the City of Edgerton must be hold a meeting to swear in council members on the second Monday. 
City Attorney has provided additional information for the City Council to consider.  
• City Council could call a special meeting on Monday January 8, 2018 to swear in new 

councilmembers and Mayor. No need to amend your ordinance..  
• If the City Council is unable to meet that night, City Attorney opinion is that does not invalidate 

the election.  New councilmembers would be sworn in at the regularly scheduled council member 
on the second Thursday. City Attorney suggests technically the newly elected members take office 
on the second Monday but there are two requirements to holding office, election (or appointment) 
and swearing in.  This would simply postpone the second requirement. 

• If the City is forced to call a special meeting and then swear in those new members, City Attorney 
would recommend at the next regularly scheduled meeting a vote to ratify the actions taken at 
the special meeting, to acknowledge the swearing in took place at the special meeting.   

 
Enclosure: Draft Charter Ordinance No. 24, as Prepared by City Attorney.  
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  Charter Ordinance No. 23 
            KSA 15-201 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Charter Ordinance 24, Amending Section 3 of Charter Ordinance No. 23 of 
the City of Edgerton, Kansas to Accurately Reflect the Expiration of City Councilmember Terms 
 



Funding Sources: N/A 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator  
Date: November 9, 2017 



CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 24 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3 OF CHARTER 
ORDINANCE NO. 23 OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS TO 
ACCURATELY REFLECT THE EXPIRATION OF CITY COUNCILMEMBER 
TERMS 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 
KANSAS: 
 
 WHEREAS,  pursuant to Article 12, Section 5 of the Kansas Constitution, hereinafter 
referred to as the “Constitution,” cities of the State of Kansas, hereinafter referred to as the “State,” 
may by charter ordinance elect, in the manner prescribed in the Constitution, that the whole or any 
part of any enactment of the State legislature applying to such city shall not apply to such city unless 
such enactment is of statewide concern applicable uniformly to all cities, is otherwise applicable 
uniformly to all cities or unless such enactment prescribes limits of indebtedness; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  pursuant to the Constitution, no charter ordinance shall take effect until sixty 
(60) days after its final publication; provided, however, if within sixty (60) days of its final 
publication a petition signed by a number of electors of the city equal to not less than ten percent 
(10%) of the number of electors who voted at the last preceding regular city election shall be filed in 
the office of the clerk of such city demanding that such ordinance be submitted to a vote of the 
electors, such charter ordinance shall not take effect until submitted to a referendum and approved 
by a majority of the electors voting thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 9, 2017 the City of Edgerton passed Charter Ordinance No. 23 which 
exempted the City from the provisions of K.S.A. 15-201 relating to the election of officers, their 
terms and transition to November elections; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas, incorrectly listed the expiration day of certain 
councilmember’s terms as “the second Thursday in January of 2018” and “the second Thursday in 
January of 2020” in Section 3 of Charter Ordinance No. 23; and  

 
WHEREAS, a Charter Ordinance can only be amended by subsequent Charter Ordinance; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Edgerton wishes to amend Section 3 of 

Charter Ordinance No. 23 to accurately reflect the correct day upon which those terms will expire. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS THAT: 
 
Section 1. The Governing Body of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, by the power vested in it by 
Article 12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas hereby amends Section 3 of Charter 
Ordinance No. 23 to read as follows: 
 

Section 3.  Those Governing Body positions with terms expiring in April 2017 shall expire 
on the second Monday in January of 2018 when the City officials elected in the November 



2017 general election take office.  Those Governing Body positions with terms expiring in 
April 2019 shall expire on the second Monday in January 2020 when the City officials elected 
in the November 2019 general election take office.  

 
Section 2.   This Charter Ordinance shall be published once each week for two (2) consecutive 
weeks in the official City newspaper. 
 
Section 3.   This Charter Ordinance shall take effect sixty-one (61) days after final publication 
unless a sufficient petition for a referendum is filed.  In that event, a referendum will be held on this 
Charter Ordinance as provided in Article 12, Section 5, Subdivision (c)(3), of the Kansas 
Constitution, in which case this Charter Ordinance shall become effective if approved by a majority 
of the electors voting therein. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, not 
less than two-thirds of the members elect voting in favor thereof, this 9th day of November, 2017. 
 
 
      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
DONALD ROBERTS, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
JANEICE RAWLES, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
LEE W. HENDRICKS, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider a Data Sharing Agreement with Johnson County Water District #7 for the 
Purposes of Gathering Water Usage of Water District Customers in Edgerton to Calculate Sewer Fees 
 
Department:  Utilities 
 
Background/Description of Item: According to Chapter XV, Article 3 of the Municipal Code of the City 
of Edgerton all commercial sewer users are to be charged for sewer utility based upon their monthly water 
usage. This usage is easy to calculate quickly for sewer customers in Edgerton who are also supplied water 
by the City of Edgerton, as the City’s water meters provide all the information needed to calculate the 
water usage of a customer in a month. However, Johnson County Water District #7 currently provides 
water services to all properties at Logistics Park Kansas City (LPKC).  
 
Staff currently is dependent upon Johnson County Water District #7 to provide the appropriate data to bill 
customers for sewer utility. Since both the City and Water District’s billing cycles end on the same date, 
and there are a number of processes the information goes through on the Water District #7 side before it 
is sent to City Staff, the time by which Staff has to calculate sewer fees and send them out to customers 
by the 1st of every month is very constrained.   
 
In an effort to provide a more efficient system of data collection from Water District #7 users located in 
the City of Edgerton, this proposed data sharing agreement will allow City Staff to obtain the water usage 
of those customers in real-time by monitoring the water meters directly. By the language of the agreement, 
City Staff will be limited to the following actions: 
 
 a. To create and maintain a database for use in producing a fully functional wastewater utility 

billing, user charge system; 
 b. To develop customer classifications to apply to each account; 
 c. To determine the status of the account (whether active or inactive); 
 d. To calculate Winter water use so that all customers are charged appropriately;  
 e. To provide wastewater customers with billing statements; 
 f. To provide current address and user information for wastewater billing; 
 g. To provide customers with the highest level of customer service; and 
 h. To provide trends analysis and reporting. 
 
The Agreement does not require the City to pay a fee for the sharing of the District’s data.  
 
The enclosed Data Sharing Agreement has been reviewed and approved by City Attorney and Attorney for 
Water District No. 7.  
 
Enclosure: Draft Data Sharing Agreement with Johnson County Water District #7 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   
 
Recommendation: Consider a Data Sharing Agreement with Johnson County Water District #7 for the 
Purposes of Gathering Water Usage of Water District Customers in Edgerton to Calculate Accurate Sewer 
Fees. 



 
Funding Sources: N/A 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator  
Date: November 5, 2017 



Page 1 of 15 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL DATA TRANSFER AND USE AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL DATA TRANSFER AND USE AGREEMENT, 

(hereinafter “Agreement”), is made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 20____, 

by and between the City of Edgerton, Kansas, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY,” and Rural 

Water District No. 7, Johnson County, Kansas, hereinafter referred to as the “DISTRICT.” 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to receive and use data and information pertaining to the 

DISTRICT’S customers, including water usage and billing information contained within the 

computer databases developed by the DISTRICT; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to use this data and information to perform wastewater 

billing; and 

 WHEREAS, the DISTRICT and the CITY desire a good working relationship through 

inter-governmental cooperation and through the sharing of certain data and information; and 

 WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is not required under the Kansas Open Records Act to provide 

all of the data and information requested by the CITY but is willing to provide the CITY with 

certain data and information under the terms of this Agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY and the DISTRICT deem the transfer of that portion of the 

DISTRICT’S data and information to the CITY that is to be transferred under the terms of this 

Agreement, to be allowed under the Kansas Open Records Act; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY and the DISTRICT mutually agree that it is in the best interests of 

each entity to coordinate the transfer and use of the above-named data and information, according 

to defined conditions; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY and the DISTRICT desire to enter into an agreement for the sharing 

of a portion of the DISTRICT’S customer and billing database information; and 



Page 2 of 15 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY and the DISTRICT hereby agree to accept the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and foregoing recitals, the mutual 

promises and covenants hereinafter given, and other good and valuable consideration, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION.  This Agreement shall become effective 

upon its acceptance and execution by the CITY and the DISTRICT and shall remain in 

effect for a period of one (1) year from and after the effective date.  Thereafter, upon each 

annual anniversary date of this Agreement, it shall be renewed for an additional one-year 

term unless one of the parties gives the other party sixty (60) days’ advance written notice 

of its intent to cancel the Agreement.  In such case, the Agreement shall terminate sixty 

(60) days after such notice is given.  If there should be any breach of any conditions of this 

Agreement, the non-breaching party shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement. 

2. AUTHORIZATION TO USE DATA.  The DISTRICT hereby grants the CITY, 

and the CITY hereby accepts, upon the express terms and conditions contained in this 

Agreement, limited authority to receive and use the DISTRICT’S computerized data and 

information described in Exhibit A of this Agreement, for the uses and purposes authorized 

under this Agreement. 

3. DATA DESCRIPTION AND TRANSFER.  The DISTRICT shall provide the 

CITY with information pertaining to customer billing and water usage, as outlined and 

contained in Exhibit A.  Transfer of this data will be in a digital form and format mutually 

agreeable to both parties, and shall be transmitted across an agreed upon data 

communications medium.  In addition to the initial data file, the DISTRICT agrees to 

monthly provide the CITY with corrections, updates and modifications to the data in its 

database, in a mutually agreed format.  Transfer of the initial data file and the monthly 

updates will be controlled by a mutually agreed upon schedule that will not interfere with 



Page 3 of 15 
 

any of the DISTRICT’S operations.  If no corrections, updates and modifications to the 

database are required in any given month, the DISTRICT will not be obligated to remit 

notification to the CITY for such month.  Further, if the CITY identifies any errors or 

discrepancies in the DISTRICT’S data, the CITY will contact the DISTRICT to resolve 

such errors or discrepancies. 

Further, the DISTRICT shall provide to the CITY, as necessary, adequate 

specifications and technical information concerning the computer programming utilized by 

the DISTRICT so that the CITY can properly access and use the data and information for 

the purposes intended.  In the event that the DISTRICT shall amend, modify, convert or 

otherwise change its information technology processes or computer programming, then the 

DISTRICT shall provide notice of such change to the CITY, to the extent reasonably 

possible, at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective implementation of the change, and 

the DISTRICT shall provide adequate specifications, technical consulting and assistance to 

ensure that the CITY can access and use the data and information as contemplated by this 

Agreement. 

4. LIMITATIONS ON USE OF DATA.  The CITY and its properly authorized 

agents shall be authorized to use the data and information provided under this Agreement 

for the following purposes and no others: 

a. To create and maintain a database for use in producing a fully functional 
wastewater utility billing, user charge system; 

b. To develop customer classifications to apply to each account; 
c. To determine the status of the account (whether active or inactive); 
d. To calculate Winter water use so that all customers are charged appropriately;  
e. To provide wastewater customers with billing statements; 
f. To provide current address and user information for wastewater billing; 
g. To provide customers with the highest level of customer service; and 
h. To provide trends analysis and reporting. 

 
The CITY agrees that its use of the DISTRICT’S data and information will be for the 

CITY’s internal billing needs and those of its properly authorized agents, and that the 



Page 4 of 15 
 

database, products or services derived therefrom will not be released to, distributed to, or 

exchanged with any other person or entity except as may otherwise be required by law. 

5. REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL DATA.  Requests for data and information 

beyond the scope of that described in Exhibit A will be made in writing to the DISTRICT 

by the CITY.  If the providing of such data would materially change the intent of this 

Agreement, or result in unreasonable expense or hardship to the DISTRICT, then the 

parties must mutually agree in writing before such data will be produced. 

6. TITLE TO DATA.  Title to the DISTRICT’S data and information shall be 

retained by the DISTRICT and shall not transfer to the CITY, but the CITY shall be 

authorized to use the data and information consistent with this Agreement. 

7. RESTRICTIONS UPON FURTHER USE OF DATA.  Under this Agreement, the 

CITY will receive data and/or information that includes the names and/or addresses of the 

DISTRICT’S customers.  The use of such data and information containing names and/or 

addresses, together with any and all duplicates and any and all products in any manner 

derived from the data and information, shall only be used by the CITY and its properly 

authorized Agents to perform services authorized under this Agreement, and shall not be 

used for the purpose of solicitation to sell any product, property or service, either directly 

or indirectly, by the CITY, its Agents, or any other third party, and such use is absolutely 

prohibited under the terms of this Agreement.  The CITY shall and hereby agrees to adopt 

and enforce policies and procedures to ensure that its use of the records, data, and 

information containing names and addresses complies with all applicable laws and 

regulations.  The CITY shall include language substantially similar to this paragraph in all 

agreements with any agents that have any access to the data to be provided under this 

Agreement. 

8. CERTIFICATION.  Pursuant to K.S.A. 45-220(c)(2), the CITY certifies that it 

“does not intend to, and will not:  (a) Use any list of names or addresses contained in or 



Page 5 of 15 
 

derived from the records or information for the purpose of selling or offering for sale any 

property or service to any person listed or to any person who resides at any address listed; 

or (b) sell, give, or otherwise make available to any person any list of names or addresses 

contained in or derived from the records or information for the purpose of allowing that 

person to sell or offer for sale any property or service to any person listed or to any person 

who resides at any address listed.” 

9. KNOWLEDGE OF VIOLATION.  In the event that the CITY becomes aware of 

the use of the DISTRICT’S data in a manner prohibited by this Agreement, then the CITY 

shall immediately obtain the data from the possessor and/or shall initiate such other action 

as may be reasonably necessary to enforce and comply with the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

10. COSTS.  Beginning at the effective date of this Agreement, the CITY shall 

not be required to pay the DISTRICT any fees for the development and transfer of 

the data and information provided under this Agreement.  The DISTRICT reserves 

the right in the future, however, to charge reasonable fees to the CITY to cover the 

costs the DISTRICT incurs for the development and transfer of data and 

information provided to the CITY.  In that event, the District will inform the CITY, 

in writing, of the fees to be charged.   Charges for such fees shall be billed monthly, 

in arrears, with payment due from the CITY within thirty (30) days of invoice.  

Such fees shall be reviewed annually and any changes in such fees will be 

submitted in writing to the CITY at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date 

of any changes. 

11. DISCLAIMER OF ACCURACY AND WARRANTIES.  The DISTRICT shall 

provide data and information as it resides in the DISTRICT’s files.  The CITY hereby 



Page 6 of 15 
 

knowingly accepts the data and information “as-is, where is, with no warranties or 

guarantees.” 

12. PUBLIC RECORDS.  The parties consider the transfer and use of the data and 

information under this Agreement to be allowed under the Kansas Open Records Act, as 

evidenced by the Attorney General’s Opinion No. 2002-55, dated December 17, 2002, 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.  If there should be any modifications to any Federal 

or State laws, administrative rulings or adjudications that would affect the legal status of 

this data and information, this Agreement shall be immediately subject to amendment or 

termination. 

13. RELEASE and INDEMNITY.  The CITY expressly releases and subject to any 

limitations provided by the Kansas Tort Claims Act, K.S.A. § 75-6101et seq., agrees to 

indemnify, defend and hold the DISTRICT harmless from any and all claims, damages or 

liability of any nature arising out of the CITY’S use of the data or information, the 

accuracy of the data or information, or any reliance on the data or information.  The CITY 

expressly agrees that it does assume all risk for use and reliance on the data and 

information. 

14. CUSTOMER COMMUNICATIONS.  The CITY shall provide the DISTRICT for 

review and comment, copies of any proposed customer communications, including but not 

limited to billing forms, billing inserts, newspaper ads, printed brochures, press releases, 

electronic media or website postings, if the proposed communications make any direct or 

indirect references to the DISTRICT or its operation.  Proposed communications shall be 

provided to the office of the Manager of the DISTRICT a reasonable amount of time prior 

to their release to allow appropriate time for the DISTRICT to review and comment.  The 

CITY shall incorporate all reasonable edits which are requested by the DISTRICT and 

which relate specifically to written material to or about the DISTRICT.  In the event that 

the DISTRICT proposes to distribute customer communication materials for its own use to 



Page 7 of 15 
 

DISTRICT customers which reference, directly, or indirectly, the CITY or its billing 

methods, then the DISTRICT shall provide copies of such communications to the CITY 

prior to any distribution and shall incorporate into such communications any reasonable 

edits requested by the CITY to those materials that relate or refer to the CITY.  The CITY 

shall make arrangements to have a complete Customer Service Department, independent of 

the DISTRICT, available to answer and process inquiries concerning wastewater service 

including billing, collections, account maintenance, new customer accounts, customer 

account transfers and account terminations. 

15. SURVIVAL OF CONDITIONS AND PROHIBITIONS.  The conditions 

contained in this Agreement and the prohibitions upon use of the data and information 

shall not expire upon the revocation or termination of this Agreement and shall remain in 

effect and apply to the parties and their use of the data and information, whether authorized 

or not. 

16. RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement is non-

transferable and non-assignable, and neither the CITY nor the DISTRICT shall transfer any 

interest, entitlement or obligation under this Agreement to any other person or entity. 

17. WAIVER.  The waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or other provisions herein. 

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding 

between the parties and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings between the 

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  Any modification or waiver of any 

provision in this Agreement shall not be effective unless made in writing. 

19. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Kansas. 

20. NOTICES.  Any notices, demands, requests, bills, invoices, reports, payment or 

correspondence required or permitted by or from one party to the other under this 



Page 8 of 15 
 

Agreement shall be made in writing, (including writing by e mail), delivered personally, or 

by United States mail, postage prepaid to the following addresses, or other location as 

either party may from time to time designate.  

 

CITY: Beth Linn 
City Administrator 
City of Edgerton, KS 
404 East Nelson 
Edgerton, KS 66021 

 

DISTRICT: Allan Soetaert 
Manager 
Water District No. 7 
P.O. Box 7 – 534 W Main St 
Gardner, KS 66030 

  

This Agreement is approved, authorized and officially executed by official action of the 

governing bodies on the date specified below. 

 

RURAL WATER DISTRICT NO. 7, JOHNSON COUNTY 
 
By: _____________________________ __________________ 

                            , Chairman Date 
 
 

By: _____________________________ __________________ 
                             , Secretary Date 

 
 
 

CITY OF EDGERTON 
 
By: _____________________________ __________________ 

                             , Mayor Date 
 
 
Attest: 

 

By: _____________________________ __________________ 
                                 , City Clerk Date 

  



Page 9 of 15 
 

EXHIBIT A:  DATA TO BE PROVIDED BY THE DISTRICT 
 

Required Data for Billing and Collection:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 10 of 15 
 

 



Page 11 of 15 
 

 



Page 12 of 15 
 



Page 13 of 15 
 

 



Page 14 of 15 
 



Page 15 of 15 
 

 


	Agenda 11-09-2017
	Minutes 10-26-2017
	Pearce Easements for Dollar General
	Year End Longevity Bonus for Employees
	Funding Recommendations for HSF 2018
	Final Acceptance for 2017 Street Program
	Final Acceptance of E Nelson Street Quiet Zone (CARS)
	Final Acceptance of West 8th Street Sidewalk
	Renewal of Residential Solid Waste with Garnder Disposal
	Ordinance No. 1067 Biennial Occupational Tax for Sale of Liquor
	Charter Ordinance No. 24 City Councilmember Terms
	Data Share Agreement with JO7



